
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




              
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


September 5, 2019, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the August 1, 2019 Board Meeting  
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Discussion/Action re Format of the Board meeting Minutes (SW) (Est. time 10 


min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Strategic Planning goals update (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Resolution 19-10, authorizing and Revoking Signers to the 


West America Bank Accounts  (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
D. Discussion/Action re Resolution 19-11 re Approving the Form of and Authorizing 


the Execution of a MOU and Authorizing Participation in the SDRMA Health 
Benefits Program (Est. time 10 min.) 


 
E. Discussion/Action re CalPERS 2017-18 Valuation report and District Unfunded 


Liability (UL) (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Board field trips (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
G. Discussion/Action re SDRMA Insurance: Coverage and Deductibles (Est. time 10 


min.) 
 
H. Discussion/Action re List of Acronyms (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
I. Discussion/Action re CSDA Election results (Est. time 5 min.) 
 
J. Discussion/Action re Sonoma County Water Contract and CalWEP membership 


(Est. time 10 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
VII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 A. Conference with Labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
  District negotiator: Ed Fortner 
  Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 
 B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


 54956.7 
  Property at 17448 River Lane, Guerneville 
  Agency negotiator: Ed Fortner 
  Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Recreation and Parks District 


 2







 
 


VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 


  


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 
 


ADJOURN 


 3







 4


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
August 1, 2019 
6:30 p.m. 
 
Board Members Present: Rich Holmer 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
 
Staff in Attendance: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Acting Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Rachel Hundley, Legal Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (6:33 p.m.) 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Tim Lipinski at 6:33 p.m. 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


The GM requested that Item V-C (District flushing) be heard first.  There were no objections.  
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:34 p.m.) 
 
President Lipinski reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Robb-Wilder requested 
that the Item III-A (Minutes of the July 3, 2019 Meeting) be pulled for discussion.  Discussion 
ensued.  The July 3 Minutes were corrected to add Director Holmer as "present" and Director 
Robb-Wilder as "absent).  Director Holmer moved to approve the items on the Consent Calendar.  
Director Marquez de la Plata seconded.  Motion carried 4-0, with Director Robb-Wilder abstaining 
from voting on the Minutes as she was absent at that meeting.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the July 3, 2019 (Rescheduled) Board Meeting, as 
amended. 


 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments. 


 
 C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence:  
 


 


 1







 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:49 p.m.) 


(None.)  
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:49 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-C (6:49 p.m.)  Public Hearing; Discussion/Action re Resolution 19-09, Overruling 


Protests and confirming Report on Annual Flat Charge.  At 6:49 p.m., President 
Lipinski opened the Public Hearing.  There were no comments.  He closed the hearing at 
6;50 p.m.  The GM provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  comments 
were made by Legal Counsel Rachel Hundley.  Further discussion ensued.  Director 
Marquez de la Plata moved to approve Resolution 19-09, Overruling Protests and 
Confirming Report on Annual Flat Charge.  Director Robb-Wilder seconded.  Further 
discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Rachel Hundley.  At 6:58 p.m. President 
Lipinski re-opened the Public Hearing for any further comments.  There were none.  At 
6:58 p.m. he closed the Public Hearing.  On vote, motion carried 5-0.   


 
V-B. (6:59 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re CSDA Elections/Ballots.  
 The GM provided an overview of this item.  Brief discussion ensued.  Director Robb-


Wilder moved for the District's vote to be cast for Candidate Cheryl Sudduth.  Director 
Holmer seconded.  Motion carried 4-1, with Directors Robb-Wilder, Schaap, Lipinski and 
Holmer voting in favor; Director Marquez de la Plata voting against.   


 
V-C. (7:10 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re District Cyber-Security.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   
 
V-D. (7:19 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re FY 2018-19 4th Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted 


(Operations and Capital) Report thru June 30, 2019.  The GM provided an overview of 
this item.  Board discussion ensued. 


 
V-E. (7:48 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Timing of FY 2018-19 Audit presentation.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Direction was given to 
staff. 


 
 


VI. CLOSED SESSION (7:57 p.m.) 
 
At 7:57 p.m. President Lipinski announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 7:58 
p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:38 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the following 
action was announced: 
 


A. Conference with labor Negotiator (pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6): 
 District negotiator: Ed Fortner 
 Employee Organization: Stationary Engineers Local 39 
 Direction was given to staff. 
 
B. Conference with Real Property Negotiators pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54956.7 
 Property: APN 071-220-068 17448 River Lane (old Vacation Beach well site) 
 Agency negotiator: Ed Fortner 
 Negotiating parties: SSWD and Russian River Recreation and Park District  
 Direction was given to staff. 


 


VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:40 p.m.) 
 
The GM provided a report on the following items: 


 2







 3


 
1. Water production and sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville rainfall 
4. River Lane property sale 
5. 2019 CIP 
6. In-House Construction Projects 
7. Cyber Security 
9. Discontinuation of Services for Non-Payment law 
10. SSWD Website Update 
11. Strategic Planning 
12. Gantt Chart 
 
Brief discussion ensued.  
 
 


VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(9:20 p.m.) 


1. Director Lipinski announced a TMDL meeting on August 14th at 8;30 a.m. in Santa Rosa. 
2. Director Marquez de la Plata announced a MAC meeting on August 15th in Cazadero. 
 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (9:35 p.m.) 
 
1. Format of Board meeting Minutes 
2. labor negotiation update 
3. CSDA election results 
4. Strategic planning goals update 
5. Field trips (Highland Tank, El Bonita Well field, Monte Rio Treatment Plant 
 


 
ADJOURN 


 
The meeting adjourned at 9:40 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Pip Marquez de la Plata       


Rich Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER (6:33 p.m.)

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:34 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:49 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:49 p.m.)*

		VII. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:40 p.m.)

		VIII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(9:20 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 5, 2019   
 
Subject:  District Board Meeting Minutes Discussion   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   


 
Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
None 


 
DISCUSSION:   
 


At the August 1st Board meeting, there was some discussion about how detailed 
the District could or should take and keep minutes as a public record.  The legal 
requirement is to keep minutes that detail only the action items.  Some 
comments related to a more in-depth descriptive form of minutes that would 
better serve as a historical record for clarity and reference.   
 
California Code, Government Code - GOV § 54953 c(2) states "The legislative 
body of a local agency shall publicly report any action taken and the vote or 
abstention on that action of each member present for the action." 
This gives direction that minutes are required to be taken.  This language is 
regarded as a requirement for taking and keeping abridged minutes.  
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District Policy number 5040.30 states: “Motions, 
resolutions or ordinances shall be recorded as having passed or failed, and 
individual votes shall be recorded unless the action was unanimous”.  The entire 
policy number 5040 is in the Board packet.  
 
The Brown Act is silent on a requirement of minutes.  Audio recordings of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District Board meetings are recorded and archived.  
An interesting ruling regarding audio recordings states: “The Brown Act does not 
require the school board itself to make any recordings. It does, however, provide 
that any recording made at the school board’s discretion would become a matter 
of public record”. Referencing California Government Code section 54953.5(b), 
the League of California Cities continues: “[a]ny tape or film record of an open 
and public meeting made for whatever purpose by or at the direction of the local 







agency is subject to the Public Records Act,” adding the curious caveat that the 
recording nevertheless “may be erased or destroyed 30 days after the taping or 
recording.” 
 
The GM has begun summarizing a more detailed account of the Board meeting 
and submitting these accounts to the local press, copying the Board members.  
Hopefully, this summary and the available audio recordings will suffice for the 
stated need for more detail and for historical reference purpose. 
 
   


 





		Meeting Date: September 5, 2019  






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 5, 2019   
 
Subject:  STRATEGIC PLANNING AND GOALS UPDATE   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   


 
Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
None 


 
DISCUSSION:   
 


At the August Board Meeting, Strategic Planning was discussed.  In lieu of the 
full scope of Strategic Planning, the Board agreed to request an update on the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District Goals.  An update for the Fiscal Year 2018-
2019 Goals is contained in Exhibit A.  
 
There was detailed discussion around Strategic Planning and Goals in 2006.  A 
very detailed document was developed.  In 2012, a committee was formed of 
two Board Members who seemed to validate the reduced version of the Goals 
being the primary tool as an annual update by the General Manager of the 
District’s Mission and Goals.  The Board Memo detailing this discussion is an 
attachment to this Board packet. 
 
 
 
   


 







Exhibit A: Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual 
Review, Fiscal Year 2018-2019 


 
The annual review is a look back of the achievements of the 
past fiscal year and a look forward to what we are expecting 
for the coming fiscal year.   
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide 
its customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and 
cost-effective manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the 
community and environment.  The District provides water distribution and 
maintenance services to five townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO 
ENSURE EFFECTIVE UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
FY 2019 Achievements:   


 Ninth year that 3% increase to Base Rate and Water Usage Charges 
was approved; Seventh Year of 3% increase to Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge.   


 Reserve Policy met by FY 2019 Budget. 
 Water sales picked up during FY 19; will this trend continue?  
 Closed USDA Bond process.    
 Increased CalPERS unfunded liability payment. 
 Value engineered FY19 CIP. 


 
FY 2020 Projections: 


 Undertake Cost of Service Study to determine rate needs for the 
coming years.  FY 2019 was the ninth year of the nine-year plan.  Is 
the $500,000 target for CIP funding still appropriate?  State Loans 
paid off soon.  


 Meet Reserve Policy with FY 2020 Budget. 
 Update long range CIP plan.  


 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH-QUALITY POTABLE 
WATER WITH FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, 
MANAGED AND MAINTAINED TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
 
 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2018-2019  2 
 
FY 2019 Achievements: 


 Compliance with California Division of Drinking Water (formerly 
Department of Public Health (DPH)) regulations achieved.  Annual 
report submitted according to schedule.   


 Monthly drought reporting continues.   
 2018 CIP (completion of Old River Road/River Road Project) 


completed.   
 2019 CIP, replacement of Monte Rio filtration system near completion.   
 Total Leaks for calendar year 2018 at 108 (target was 100). 
 System leakage at 17.0% (May 2019) (target was 20%). 
 Completing validated water audit due October 2019. 
 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP) completed in October 2016, 


received letter of acceptance in FY18.  Will update plan in 2020.  
 Coastland continues to be Engineer of record for District. 


 
FY 2020 Projections: 
 


 2019 CIP should be completed in early September 2019. 
 Total leaks goal for calendar year 2019 at 100.   
 System leakage at 17%.  Continue using correlation equipment on 


regular basis to identify and fix leaks.  Review use of State Water 
Audit methodology to improve reporting of system losses; confirm 
validation process. 


 Continue understanding and use of automated map.  Become better at 
it; start making needed revisions.  New GM is reassessing value of 
mapping system.   


   
 


GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS 
FOR ALL REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
FY 2019 Achievements:   
 


 Emergency Action Plan was reviewed and updated in October 2018.     
 Flood preparedness and response was well executed in 2019.  GM met 


with DDW Engineer to confirm flood response procedures.  Fall flood 
awareness notice will be mailed out in September and October billing 
cycles. 


 3rd year of flooding procedures went well; river flooded significantly 
twice.  


 
 
FY 2020 Projections: 
 


 Update of Emergency Action Plan in October 2019. 
 Participate in County Emergency Operations communications/meetings 


in 2019. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2018-2019  3 
 


 Continue efforts to communicate with local agencies re emergency 
preparedness.  


 Work with local efforts for specific plans (Wildfire Preparation?)   
 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
FY 2019 Achievements: 


   
 Field staff oversight of 2019 CIP. 
 31 in-house projects totaling 1,151.25 man-hours (down from 38 


projects and 1,969.75 hours).   
 Fourth year of implementation of MOU; it went well. 
 Staff meetings on Capital and Operating issues. 
 Promotion of Jack Bushgen upon retirement of Kevin Gilman as Field 


Manager. 
 Ryan Wilson attained Class III Distribution License. 


  
FY 2020 Projections: 
 


 Continue staff training efforts. 
 Oversee completion of 2019 CIP construction. 
 Continue focus on in-house projects. 
 Participate in more webinars and workshops. 


 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC AND GOVERNMENTAL 
OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND EDUCATION 
 
FY 2019 Achievements: 
 


 Meeting summary sent to local media on monthly basis.   
 Website updated on at least monthly basis. 
 Continued display in lobby that shows examples of pipes that are being 


replaced by capital projects – good public response to this.   
 Making effort to provide outreach with local Chambers regarding the 


drought response. 
 Making monthly reports to State on required drought response 


information.   
 
FY 2020 Projections: 
 


 Continue with meeting summaries.   
 Look for opportunities to provide community leadership/participation 


on water-related issues.   
 Continue to look for ways to make website more useful. 
   







Sweetwater Springs Water District Annual Review  
Fiscal Year 2018-2019  4 
 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND 
INFORMATION 
 
FY 2019 Achievements: 
 


 Discussed strategic planning.  
 Kept board informed on District issues. 
 Coordinated new legal counsel communications. 
 


 
FY 2020 Projections: 
 


 Continue to review sections of Policies and Procedures for revision. 
 Evaluate facility tour opportunities. 
 Update Board on Strategic Planning Goals. 
   


 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Sukey Robb-Wilder, President 
 


 
Meeting Date: December 6, 2012 
  
SUBJECT: DISCUSSION/ACTION RE PROGRESS REPORT OF THE AD HOC GOALS 
AND OBJECTIVES FORMATTING COMMITTEE 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive an update from the ad hoc Committee on Goals and 
Objectives. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  none.   
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder and Victoria Wikle met with General Manager Steve Mack on 
November 15 and continued to review the District’s Goals and Objectives document.  
They have found that some of the items are implicit in the District’s Mission 
Statement on the District's website, such as the goal to provide reliable and high 
quality potable water.  Other items are tasks that have been completed, such as 
establishing a district reserve policy.  Still others need periodic review, such as 
disaster preparedness plans and emergency exercises.   Some items in the Goals 
and Objectives document are procedural and others are more policy-oriented than 
procedural, such as the goals of providing public outreach and enhancing board 
communications.  


The document in its present form has been a useful organizing tool for the Board.  It 
is a good historical reference but it could be replaced with a structure that is more 
workable today, especially for those items that to be reviewed periodically.  Steve 
will put together a structure for review at the next Committee meeting. 
   





		Item V-B - District Goals Update

		Meeting Date: September 5, 2019  



		Item V-B.1 - 2019 Annual Goals Review Report

		Item V-B.2 - Goals and Objectives Report 2012






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


 
 Meeting Date: September 5, 2019 
 
 Subject:  West America Account – Authorizing and Revoking Signers 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


Approve Resolution 19-10, Authorizing and Revoking Signers to the West America Bank Accounts. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


None.  
 


 
DISCUSSION: 


This Resolution is necessary in order to replace Steve Mack with Ed Fortner as an authorized signer 
on the West America account.   
 
The Board approved Resolution 19-04 in April replacing Steve Mack with Ed Fortner in the list of West 
America authorized signers.  However the final steps needed to complete this change have been 
pending since then awaiting an updated identification card by Director Marquez de la Plata.  We are 
now moving forward with Resolution 19-10 that would not include Director Marquez de la Plata in the 
list of signers.  West America bank is no longer requiring us to submit approved Minutes of our 
Resolution and has already prepared an updated signature card.  This means that if Resolution 19-10 
is approved, Ed can begin signing checks shortly after this meeting. 
 







Resolution No. 19-10 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND REVOKING SIGNERS TO THE 


WEST AMERICA BANK ACCOUNTS 
 


 RESOLVED THAT:  The Sweetwater Springs Water District is authorized to 
open and maintain the accounts with West America Bank contemplated in the Bank’s 
signature card and agreement; 
 
 FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  The persons or combination of persons 
listed as signers on the signature card are authorized to endorse, on behalf of this 
organization, any checks or other items payable to the organization or its order, to 
deposit such checks and other items into account with or without such endorsement and 
to direct withdrawals from the account by check drawn on the account or otherwise, 
including withdrawals payable to anyone who is an authorized signer. 
 
 FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  This organization hereby ratifies and 
confirms the acts of its officers, agents or employees in heretofore opening these 
accounts with this Bank together with any acts performed in relation thereto. 
 
 FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED THAT:  The previous signatory authorization on 
any and all accounts of the District by Steve Mack and Pip Marquez de la Plata are 
hereby revoked as the result of Mr. Mack's retirement from the District and Director 
Marquez de la Plata's expired identification required by the West America Bank. 
 
 
I certify that: I am the secretary of SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, a 
Special District;  
 
 The foregoing is a copy of the resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of 
said organization on the 5th day of September, 2019. 
 
 Ed Fortner is the General Manager of said organization;  
 
 The signature card(s) to be signed on or before SETPEMBER 5, 2019, by ED 
FORTNER, GENERAL MANAGER; TIM LIPINSKI, DIRECTOR; GAYLORD SCHAAP, 
DIRECTOR; RICHARD HOLMER, DIRECTOR; and SUSAN (SUKEY) ROBB-WILDER, 
DIRECTOR; is the signature card contemplated by the foregoing resolution;  
 
 All of the signatures appearing for authorized signers on the signature card 
referenced by said resolution are those of the persons authorized to withdraw funds in 
accordance with said resolution until such authority is revoked by giving written notice to 
the Bank signed by authorized officers of this organization; and, this resolution is still in 
force and are unmodified. 
 
 


***************************** 
  







I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on September 5, 2019, 
by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Wilder        
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 
 


            
      Julie A. Kenny 
      Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 
 
      
Tim Lipinski 
President of the Board 


 
 





		Item V-C - West America signers to add Fortner and delete Mack

		None. 



		Item V-C.1 - RES 19-10, Changing West America signers






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


 
 Meeting Date: September 5, 2019 
 
 Subject:  District Unfunded CalPERS Pension Liability 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


None.  Receive and consider staff report. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 


The FY 2019-20 budget provides for a total of $120,000 for unfunded pension liability expense.  Of 
this, $55,451 is a mandatory payment, and $64,549 is an extra payment.  This does not include 
ongoing pension expenses, budgeted at $95,000 this fiscal year. 


 
 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Staff has generally made the Board aware of our growing liability to CalPERS for accrued employee 
retirement benefits.  The CalPERS acronym for this liability is "UL", short for "Unfunded Liability":  This 
report is intended to provide more detail to the Board about the reasons behind the increase in our UL 
over the last few years.   
 
Unfunded Liability -- UL -- is the difference between our pension obligations to present and past 
employees and the assets we currently have to pay those obligations:  
 


Accrued Pension Liability - Pension Assets Saved = Unfunded Liability (UL) 
 
The District's UL has nearly doubled in the last six years, from approximately $500,000 at the start of 
FY 2014-15 to $945,634 at the end of FY 2018-19 based on the annual CalPERS Valuation Report 
received this month.  How did this happen?  Attachment 1 to this staff report is a table which breaks 
down the numbers for this six-year time period.  The three key takeaways from the table are: 
 


1. Changes in assumptions comprise the bulk of UL additions.  This is 
illustrated in the red block on the table.  In four out of the six years covered by the table 
CalPERS changed its assumptions, one year regarding the age of death and the other 
three years regarding assumed investment returns.  As the table shows, the price tag for 
these changes is shockingly high, comprising almost $450,000 of additional UL. 
 
2. Our annual mandatory UL payment assessed by CalPERS isn't enough to 
cover interest on our UL debt.  This shortfall is shown in the maroon block on the table.  
To illustrate, at the beginning of  FY 2013-14 our UL was $575,549.  That year, our 
interest rate was 7.5%.  Interest alone on this balance would have been approximately 







$43,000 (7.5% of $575,549).  However, our mandatory payment to CalPERS that year 
was set at $16,715.  The difference -- unpaid interest -- gets added to our UL balance.   
 
3. Investment returns haven't really impacted UL balance.  The impact of 
investment returns are shown is shown in the orange block on the table.  During the time 
period shown in the table, CalPERS assumed its investment returns would be anywhere 
from 7.5% during the early years on the table to 7% in FY 2018-19.  Some years 
CalPERS did better than assumed, and some years CalPERS did worse.  Over the entire 
6-year period, the net effect of investment returns actually reduced our UL balance by 
approximately $45,000.  Attachment 2 is a CalPERS Facts at a Glance publication that 
shows, among other items, a 30-year average investment return of 8.2%. 


 
For the past three years the District has made extra payments to begin addressing our growing UL 
balance.  The current schedule for extra payments aims towards paying off our UL in about 30 years (we 
are now 3 years in), with higher payments on the front end.  However, because of the high interest rate 
on our UL staff is recommending a more rigorous extra payment schedule. 
 
What would this look like?  Attachment 3 is a schedule showing level annual payments for various 
accelerated timeframes. 
 
Where would the funds to prepay on an accelerated schedule come from?   
 - From the Capital Improvement Program (i.e., fewer or smaller capital projects) 
 - From customers (i.e. rate increase) 
 - From employees (current employee retirement share is 7% of base pay) 
 - From a loan or bond issue (current rates are over 4%) 
 - From District policy reserve ($1,379,359 in FY 2019-20) 
 - From some combination of the above sources 
 
What does staff recommend?  Staff recommends borrowing from the District's policy reserve to pay off 
the unfunded liability in two large payments of $500,000 made in FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21.  Our debt 
would move from CalPERS (who charges 7% interest) to our own Policy Reserve (which wouldn't charge 
any interest, but would lose out on the approximately 2% it earns at the County).  The District would then 
replenish the Policy Reserve at a rate of $135,000/year for seven years, beginning in FY 2020-21.  
(Attachment 4 is Ordinance 41 passed in December, 2009, which set up the Policy Reserve parameters 
and provides for its use.) 
 
It's alot to consider.  Staff recommends a separate discussion of the District's approach towards 
addressing UL be added to the October meeting.  Should the Board wish to review our PERS Valuation 
report in its entirety, it can be viewed on the CalPERS website at the following link: 
 


https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/employers/actuarial-services/employer-contributions/public-agency-
actuarial-valuation-reports 


 
 
 



https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/employers/actuarial-services/employer-contributions/public-agency-actuarial-valuation-reports

https://www.calpers.ca.gov/page/employers/actuarial-services/employer-contributions/public-agency-actuarial-valuation-reports





A Recent History of Sweetwater's Unfunded Liability - 2% @ 55 Plan
Source: PERS Annual Valuation Report


U/L at Start of FY


Minimum 
Required 
Payment Extra Payment


Total UL 
Payments


Net toward 
principal


Unpaid interest 
(added to UL)


Initial FYE UL 
(Balance - 
Principal Pymts + 
Unpd Interest)


Plus/Minus 
Impact on UL of 
Investment 
Returns


Plus/Minus 
Impact on UL of 
Assumption 
Changes


U/L Carried to 
Next FY Year Notes:


FY 2013-14 $575,549.00 $16,715.00 $0.00 $16,715.00 $0.00 $25,835.00 $601,384.00 -$252,743.00 $152,063.00 $500,704.00 Assumed age of death increased


FY 2014-15 $500,704.00 $22,170.00 $0.00 $22,170.00 $0.00 $14,566.00 $515,270.00 $155,419.00 $0.00 $670,689.00  


FY 2015-16 $670,689.00 $19,980.00 $0.00 $19,980.00 $0.00 $29,587.00 $700,276.00 $201,792.00 $63,905.00 $965,973.00
Assumed investment return lowered from 
7.5% to 7.375%


FY 2016-17 $965,973.00 $28,871.00 $60,000.00 $88,871.00 $15,792.00 $0.00 $950,181.00 -$129,223.00 $73,504.00 $894,462.00
Assumed investment return lowered from 
7.375% to 7.25%


FY 2017-18 $894,462.00 $36,120.00 $75,883.00 $112,003.00 $39,578.00 $0.00 $854,884.00 -$20,698.00 $159,193.00 $993,379.00
Assumed investmenet return lowered from 7.25% 
to 7%.  : $123,964
Impact of PERS methodology change: $35,229.


FY 2018-19 $993,379.00 $46,731.00 $78,720.00 $125,451.00 $47,745.00 $0.00 $945,634.00 $0.00 $0.00 $945,634.00


FY 2019-20 $945,634.00 $55,031.00


TOTALS: $69,988.00 -$45,453.00 $448,665.00


Joined 2% @ 55 in May 2011


  


 







Facts at a Glance is a compilation of information of interest to board members, staff, and the general public. 
Every effort has been made to verify the accuracy of the information, which is intended for general use only.


Facts at a Glance for Fiscal Year 2017–18Investment & Pension Funding


Investments (PERF*)


Total Fund Market Value & Total Net 
Investment Return** 10-year Review 
(for FY end 6/30)


(in billions) (% ) 
2018 $354.0 8.6%
2017 $326.4 11.2%
2016 $302.0 0.6%
2015 $301.9 2.4%
2014 $300.3 18.4%
2013 $257.9 13.2% 
2012 $233.4 0.1% 
2011 $237.5 21.7%
2010 $200.0 13.3%
2009 $180.9 (24.0%) 


* Public Employees' Retirement Fund (PERF)
** Net time-weighted rate of returns


Total Net Investment Return* (for FY end 6/30)
FY to date                                    8.6%
3 years                                       6.7%
5 years                                       8.1%
10 years                                      5.6%
20 years                                      6.1%
30 years                                     8.4%


* Net time-weighted rate of returns


Discount Rate Changes 
2017-18* (State)                     7.5% � 7.375%
2018-19* (School/PA)              7.5% � 7.375%


2018-19* (State)                  7.375% � 7.25%
2019-20* (School/PA)             7.375% � 7.25%


2019-20* (State)                   7.25% � 7.0%
2020-21* (School/PA)              7.25% � 7.0%


2012                              7.75% � 7.5%
2004                            8.25% � 7.75%


* FY required contribution


Total Fund Market Value 1988–2018 (for FY end 6/30)


$0


$50


$100


$150


$200


$250


$300


$350


$400


'18'17'16'15'14'13'12'11'10'09'08'07'06'05'04'03'02'01'00'99'98'97'96'95'94'93'92'91'90'89'88


$45.4 bil


$237.5 bil


$172.3 bil


$100.8 bil


$354 bil


$247.7 bil







Investments (cont'd)
Facts at a Glance for Fiscal Year 2017–18


Investment & Pension Funding » 2


Current Asset Allocation


20+11+10+7+4+48+H
48.8% Public Equity


22.5% Global Fixed Income


10.8% Real Assets


7.7% Private Equity


5.9% Inflation Assets


4.2% Other:
3.3% Liquidity
0.9% Total Plan Level


Asset Allocation
Strategic


Current Asset
Allocation Allocation *


Public Equity 48.8% 49.0%
Global Fixed Income 22.5% 22.0%
Real Assets 10.8% 12.0%
Private Equity 7.7% 8.0%
Inflation Assets 5.9% 6.0%
Liquidity 3.3% 3.0%
Total Plan Level** 0.9% —


* Adopted on December 18, 2017; implemented July 1, 2018


** The Total Plan Level includes multi-asset class, transition and plan
level portfolios. These assets do not have targets because they are not 
components of the Total Fund Policy benchmark.


California Investments 


89+11+H 9.5%
California investments as 
percentage of the total fund 


$33.6 billion 


Fair Value
(in millions)


Total California Investments $33,556 
Public Equity $17,157 
Global Fixed Income $5,559
Private Equity* $821 
Real Assets* $10,019 


* As of March 31, 2018


Sustainable Investing
CalPERS actively engages with the companies we own to 
protect the long-term sustainability of our investment. 
From issues regarding environmental responsibility 
to safe labor practices, we keep an open dialog with 
company leaders and vote our proxies.


10,900+
Number of proxy votes CalPERS cast
in 2018 at companies worldwide
(calendar year)







Facts at a Glance for Fiscal Year 2017–18
Investment & Pension Funding » 3Pension Funding


Funded Status of Retirement Plans by 
Member Category


State School PA Total 


2016–17 65.8% *  68.7% * 69.5% * 67.9% *
2015–16 62.3% 67.8%  66.2%  68.3%


2014–15 69.4% 77.5% 74.5% 73.1%


2013–14 72.1% 82.0% 77.9% 76.3%


2012–13 66.1% 76.2% 70.5% 69.8%


2011–12 66.1% 75.4% 70.1% 69.6%


* Based on a 7.0% discount rate; does not include the 8.6% return for FY 2017-18.


Contributions, 10-Year Review (in thousands)


Employer Member Investment
Contributions Contributions & Other Income


2017–18 $19,917,796 * $4,415,129 $27,448,098
2016–17 $12,329,837 $4,214,578 $32,977,020


2015–16 10,892,489 4,015,754 1,548,442


2014–15 9,997,705 3,826,072 6,702,997


2013–14 8,777,602 3,775,038 45,598,044


2012–13 8,123,833 3,897,078 30,291,983


2011–12 7,772,913 3,598,437 (196,014)


2010–11 7,465,397 3,600,089 43,907,436


2009–10 6,955,049 3,378,867 25,577,529


2008–09 6,912,379 3,882,355 (57,363,899)


* Amount includes an additional $6 billion dollar contribution by the state.


Funded Status Total PERF*


32+68+H 68%


2016–17**


30+70+H 71%


2017–18***


*  Public Employees' Retirement Fund (PERF)


**  Estimate using a 7.0% discount rate; does not
include the 8.6% investment return for FY 2017-18; 
equivalent of 70.1% based on the CAFR using 
a discount rate of 7.375% for schools, 7.25% for 
public agencies and state.


*** Estimate based on using a 7.0% discount rate; 
includes the 8.6% investment return for FY 2017-18.


Total Employer Contributions 


54+33+13+H$19.9 bil


School districts and 
Charter Schools
$2.1 billion / 12%


State of California
$11.7 billion *  / 54%


Public agencies
$6.1 billion / 34%


Shared Responsibility
Every dollar paid to CalPERS retirees comes 
from three sources:


26+13+61+H$1


Investment earnings
59¢ 


CalPERS employers
28¢


CalPERS members
13¢


* Amount includes an additional $6 billion dollar
contribution by the state.







 


$945,634*
 


7%


TOTAL PYMTS:


1  


2 10 years $135,000/year $1,347,000


3 7 years $177,000/year $1,229,000


4 5 years $231,000/year $1,154,000


5 3 years $361,000/year $1,081,000


6 Staff recommendation
$135,000/year for 7 years to 


reimburse Policy Reserve 
(0% interest after 2 years)


$976,828


* Only considers current  PERS UL, not future changes to the total.


For now, $79,000/year but more in the first years, less in 
the later years.  Total payments:     $2,130,000


Various payoff schedules to pay off current PERS unfunded 
liability*


Approximate unfunded liability to
address (FY 2018-19): 


Interest rate:


Current Plan: We are 3 years into 
a 30-year payoff, adding add'l 
liabilities as accrued







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: December 3, 2009 
  
SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 41 ESTABLISHING A DISTRICT RESERVE 
POLICY  
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt, by reading of title only, Ordinance No. 41, An 
Ordinance of Sweetwater Springs Water District Adding Policy Number 3510, District 
Reserve Policy, to the District’s Policy and Procedures.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Adoption of Ordinance No. 41 would have the financial impact of 
designating a certain amount of funds as reserves that will be used only in certain, 
defined situations.  The Board will be able to direct use of the funds as long as a plan is 
established to return the reserves to the designated level. 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
Ordinance 41 was introduced at the November 5, 2009 Board meeting.  In 
introducing the ordinance, the Board modified Ordinance 41 by changing the 
Operations Fund from $200,000 to 15% of Operating Budget expenses and deleting 
a sentence in Section 3050.23 that allowed modification of the Capital Reserve by 
resolution.  Table 1 shows the amounts of funds that would be designated by the 
Ordinance 41 reserve policy compared to the draft reserve policy used for the FY 
2010 Budget.  Table 1 also shows the amount of funds available to the District for 
construction of capital improvement projects.   After Ordinance 41 becomes 
effective, staff anticipates coming back to the Board to revise the FY10 Budget to 
reflect the appropriate Policy Reserve amounts as part of a mid-year budget 
adjustment. 
 
Staff recommends adoption of Ordinance 41.  If adopted at this meeting the 
ordinance will become effective in 30 days on January 4, 2010 and will become a 
part of the District’s budget process.   Below is a summary of the staff report for the 
November meeting that provides background on the reserve policy, revised to reflect 
the ordinance introduced at the November meeting: 
 
Reserve policies are common and recommended for public agencies.   They provide 
a “rainy day” fund for unanticipated events, establish a measure of financial health, 
and they are part of the process for determining how much capital spending an 
agency can afford.  
 







Ordinance 41, District Reserve Policy  2  
December 3, 2009 


Over the past 10 years the District has worked hard to improve its financial 
condition.  Today, that condition is good.  We are audited each year and recent 
audits have given the District good marks for financial accountability and openness.   
Operational, economic, and other possible uncertainties suggest some level of 
reserves is needed.    
 
At the same time the District needs substantial infrastructure improvements, has an 
aggressive capital improvement program (CIP) and is asking for funding assistance 
to construct the projects in the CIP.  The annual revenues of the District are not 
sufficient to fund the needed CIP and funds for these projects will come in part from 
District reserves, loans, or grants.   Some measure of the District’s reserves is 
needed to determine how much of the District’s money is available to construct the 
CIP and still stay in good financial condition, and how loans and grants can fit into 
the District’s long term financial picture.  A formal reserve policy which sets out the 
appropriate amount of District funds needed for unanticipated events, will help 
identify reserves available for the CIP while ensuring the District stays in good 
financial condition.     
 
Ordinance 41 establishes that reserve policy and places it in the District’s Policies 
and Procedures in Section 3510.  The reserve policy is based on setting aside 25% of 
Operating Budget Expenses, 25% of annual debt principal and interest payments, 
25% of a nominal $1 million capital improvement program, and cash equivalent to 
15% of the Operating Budget for ongoing operations at the start of the fiscal year.  A 
draft reserve policy based on revenues, but not including a debt payment reserve, 
was used for the Fiscal Year 2009-2010 (FY10) Budget.   
 
The Board discussed the reserve policy at its September and October meetings and 
Ordinance 41 at its introduction at the November meeting.  It agreed with the 
concept of a reserve at the 25% level, directed staff to include debt repayments in 
the reserve, and directed that the operating reserve be based on expenses rather 
than revenues.  At the November meeting the Board revised the draft Ordinance 41 
to have the Operations Fund at 15% of Operating Budget expenses and deleting a 
sentence in Section 3050.23 that allowed modification of the Capital Reserve by 
resolution.   Table 1 shows the amounts that would be in the policy reserves for the 
FY10 Budget if the Ordinance 41 policy were used, and compares those amounts to 
those in the adopted FY10 Budget.   To summarize Table 1, the Policy Reserve 
amount in the adopted FY10 Budget is $995,830; using the approach in Ordinance 
41 it would be $1,157,910.   
 
Some observations on the recommended District Reserve Policy:  
 


• The reserve policy amount sets a target which the annual budget should not 
go below.  Ordinance 41 provides flexibility by allowing going below the target 
if there is a plan to get above the target within a reasonable time.  The plan 
could involve raising rates over time, reducing CIP spending in a future year 
or some other cost reducing or revenue increasing approach. 


 







Ordinance 41, District Reserve Policy  3  
December 3, 2009 


• Ordinance 41 in Section 3510.3 defines District funds in excess of the Reserve 
Policy as Reserves above District Policy.  That identifies the amount of funding 
available for the District’s Capital Improvement Program. 


 
 


Table 1.  Ordinance 41 Policy Reserves 


    


2010 
Budget, 


operating 
revenues 


Ordinance 
41, 


operating 
expenses 


2010 Operating Revenues/Expenses   $2,183,318 $1,587,703 
Debt P&I Payments    $1,091,314 
Operating Reserve (10%+15%=25%)   $545,830 $396,926 
Capital Reserve   $250,000 $250,000 
Cash on Hand (Operations Fund)   $200,000 $238,155 
Debt Payments Reserve      $272,829 
        
Total Policy Reserves   $995,830 $1,157,910 
        
FY 2010 EOY Reserves   $3,069,581   
Funds above Reserve Policy   $2,073,751 $1,911,671 


 







ORDINANCE NO. 41 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADDING  
POLICY NUMBER 3510 TO THE DISTRICT’S POLICY AND PROCEDURES, 


RESERVE POLICY  
  
  


WHEREAS, the District wishes to establish a formal policy regarding financial 
reserves for District funds for the purposes of providing information to District elected 
officials and staff, District customers, and other observers of the District that 
demonstrate the financial health of the District, provide consistent designations for 
different categories for the reserves, define standards for the minimum amounts to 
be maintained in the designated reserves, and provide flexibility in using District 
funds; and  


 
WHEREAS, reserve policies are common and recommended for public 


agencies because they provide a “rainy day” fund for unanticipated events and 
establish a measure of financial health; and  


 
WHEREAS, adequate levels of reserves, or funds designated for various 


important purposes, are critical to the successful and stable operation of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District; and 


 
WHEREAS, maintaining adequate reserves can translate into rate 


stabilization from year to year for customers and provides assurance that the District 
can respond to short-term emergencies, including water quality issues and natural 
disaster recovery, and economic uncertainties; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the levels of reserves enumerated 


below are the appropriate levels for the purposes of the reserve policy; and  
 
WHEREAS, determining the level of reserves for the purposes designated in 


the reserve policy is an essential part of the process for determining how much 
capital spending the District can afford; and 


 
WHEREAS, the District’s reserve policy will be most readily understood and 


accepted if it is formally adopted; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff presented and the Board considered and discussed the 


reserve policy at the September 3 and October 1, 2009 meetings, and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 41 was introduced at the November 5, 2009 meeting. 
 


 







Ordinance No. 41. Reserve Policy  2 
December 3, 2009 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District, County of Sonoma, as follows: 
  
 Section 1. Policy Number 3510 of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District Policy & Procedures is hereby added as follows.  
 


3510.  District Reserves.   


 


3510.1.  Purposes of District Reserve Policy.  The purposes of the District 
Reserve Policy are to provide information to District elected officials and staff, 
District customers and other observers of the District that demonstrate the 
financial health of the District, provide consistent designations for different 
categories for the reserves, define standards for the minimum amounts to be 
maintained in the designated reserves, identify funding available for future capital 
improvement projects, and provide flexibility in using District reserves. 


 


3510.2.    Components of Designated District Reserves.  


 


3510.21.  Operating Budget Cash Reserve.  The District will have a cash 
reserve of 15% of the annual Operating Budget expenses at the start of each 
fiscal year to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses for the 
coming fiscal year. 
 
3510.22.    Operating Reserve.  The District will establish and maintain a 
reserve equal to 10% of its annual operating budget expenses for the 
purposes of providing for one-time costs, dealing with economic uncertainty,   
The District will establish and maintain a reserve equal to 15% of its annual 
operating budget expenses for the purposes of dealing with emergencies and 
disaster-related expenses.  In combination, the Operating Reserve will have a 
target of 25% of the Operating Budget expenses. 
 
3510.23.    Capital Reserve.  The District will establish a Capital Reserve of 
$250,000, which is equal to 25% of a nominal $1,000,000 Capital Program.     
 
3510.24.    Debt Repayment Reserve.  The District will establish a debt 
payment reserve which is equal to 25% of all payments for principal and 
interest on all District loans in the annual operating and capital budgets. 


 


3510.25.  District Policy Reserves.  The combined amount of reserves 
designated by Sections 3050.21-24 are known as District Policy Reserves. 
 


3510.3.  Undesignated Reserves.  Reserves in District funds in excess of the 
amounts designated in sections 3050.21-24 above are undesignated, are known 
as Reserves above District Policy, and are available for use for District purposes, 
such as funding the Capital Improvement Program.   


 


3510.4.  Annual Review of District Funds and Reserve Levels.  The District 
Policy Reserves levels will be reviewed as part of the annual District Budget 







Ordinance No. 41. Reserve Policy  3 
December 3, 2009 


approval process.  The District may drop below the District Policy Reserve levels 
only if a plan is developed as part of the budget approval process that shows 
how the District will reestablish reserves that meet the District Policy Reserve 
amount.   


   
  Section 2. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective 
thirty (30) days after the date of its adoption by the Board of Directors.  
 
This Ordinance was adopted this 3rd day of December, 2009, on roll call by the 
following vote: 
  
 Jim Quigley    
 Gaylord Schaap:   
 Victoria Wikle:   
 Wanda Smith:   
 Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______ 
     
           
      Victoria Wikle 
      President of the Board 
ATTEST: 
  
  
    
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board 





		Item V-E - District CalPERS Unfunded Pension Liability

		The FY 2019-20 budget provides for a total of $120,000 for unfunded pension liability expense.  Of this, $55,451 is a mandatory payment, and $64,549 is an extra payment.  This does not include ongoing pension expenses, budgeted at $95,000 this fiscal year.



		Item V-E.1 - PERS UL History

		Sheet1 (2)



		Item V-E.2 - FY 2016-17 CalPers Pension Funding Factsheet

		Investment & Pension Funding

		Investments (PERF*)

		Discount Rate Changes

		Total Fund Market Value 1988–2018 (for FY end 6/30)

		Current Asset Allocation

		California Investments

		Sustainable Investing



		Pension Funding

		Funded Status Total PERF*

		Total Employer Contributions

		Shared Responsibility







		Item V-E.3 - Various payoff schedules

		UL Extra Pymt Options



		Item V-E.4 - Ordinance 41, Establishing a District Reserve 12-03-2009

		Item V-C - District Reserve Policy Ordinance

		Item V-C.1 ORD 41 - District Reserve Policy












SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 5, 2019   
 
Subject:  GUERNEVILLE AND MONTE RIO TREATMENT FACILITIES SITE 
VISIT/ FIELD TRIP    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   


 
Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
None 


 
DISCUSSION:   
 


At the August Board Meeting, a field trip to the new Monte Rio Treatment Plant, 
the Guerneville El Bonita well site, and Highland Tank Treatment Plant was 
discussed.  The Monte Rio ATEC system is now completed and permitted with 
the exception of a few punch list items.  September would be the ideal month to 
schedule site visits.  Discussion of potential dates/ time of day would be helpful.  
The GM will be on vacation September 12-22nd.  
 
 
 
   


 





		Meeting Date: September 5, 2019  






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-G  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 5, 2019   
 
Subject:  SDRMA POLICY LINES OF COVERAGE AND DEDUCTIBLES 
2019-2020    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   


 
Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
None 


 
DISCUSSION:   
 


At the August 1st Board Meeting, the Board requested a list of deductibles and 
coverages for all lines of coverage with SDRMA for the District, Employees, and 
Board members.  Agenda Item V – B.1 is a comprehensive list of these lines of 
coverage and deductibles.  The question was raised about coverage for Board 
Members.  That information is included below.  
  
Staff and Board Members coverage includes: 
 
Public Officials and Employee Errors and Omissions 
Coverage for public officials’ and directors’ “wrongful acts”, alleged or actual 
negligence, errors and omissions, breach of duty, misfeasance, malfeasance, 
and nonfeasance, and defamation. Limit: $5,000,000 per occurrence/annual 
aggregate. Deductible: None. 
 
Elected Officials Personal Liability 
This highly specialized unique coverage protects elected/appointed officials from 
claims and settlements arising outside the course and scope of their duties. 
Coverage includes invasion of privacy, libel, slander, defamation of character, 
discrimination, false arrest, and malicious protection. Limits: $500,000 per 
official per year/annual aggregate. Deductible: $500 per claim. 
 
 
 
Employee and Public Officials Dishonesty 







Coverage protection for member losses resulting from fraudulent or dishonest 
acts committed by employees, volunteers or board members. Coverage includes 
larceny, theft, embezzlement, forgery, and wrongful misappropriation. Limits: 
$1,000,000. Deductible: None. 
 
 
 
   


 









		Item V-G - SDRMA Lines of Coverage and Deductibles

		Meeting Date: September 5, 2019  



		Item V-G.1 -  SDRMA Policy Lines of Coverage and Deductibles 2019-2020






List of Acronyms  Page 1 of 2 
September 5, 2019 
 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO.   V- H 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 5, 2019   
 
Subject:  LIST OF COMMONLY USED ACRONYMS   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
 


 ACWA- Association of California Water Agencies 
 AF- Acre Feet 
 AFY- Acre Feet per Year 
 AMI- Advanced Meter Infrastructure 
 AMR- Automatic Meter Reading 
 AWE- Alliance for Water Efficiency 
 CAG- Community Action Group 
 CalPERS- California Public Employees Retirement System 
 CALWEP- California Water Efficiency Partnership 
 CDRC- Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
 CDRC- Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
 CEQA- California Environmental Quality Act 
 CERBT- California Employees Retiree Benefit Trust Fund 
 CIP- Capital Improvement Project 
 CIRF- Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 
 CIRF- Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 
 CIRF PY- Capital Improvement Reserve Fund Prior Year 
 CSAC-EIA- California State Association of Counties- Excess Insurance 


Authority 







List of Acronyms  Page 2 of 2 
September 5, 2019 
 


 CSDA- California Special District Association 
 DDW- Division of Drinking Water 
 DEIR- Draft Environmental Impact Report 
 EIR- Environmental Impact Report 
 EOY- End of Year 
 EPA- Environmental Protection Agency 
 FY- Fiscal Year 
 GIS- Geographic Information System 
 GO- General Obligation (Bond) 
 GPS- Geographic Positioning System 
 GV- Guerneville 
 HDPE- High Density Polyethylene Pipe 
 IA- Interagency Team 
 MR- Monte Rio 
 OWTS- On Site Wastewater Treatment Systems 
 PARS- Public Agency Retirement Services 
 RD- Rural Development 
 RRR&PD- Russian River Recreation and Park District 
 SCADA- Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition 
 SCWA- Sonoma County Water Agency 
 SCWA- Sonoma County Water Agency (Sonoma Water) 
 SDRMA- Special District Risk Management Association 
 SSWD- Sweetwater Springs Water District 
 SWRCB- State Water Resources Control Board 
 TMDL- Total Maximum Daily Load 
 UL- Unfunded Liability in CalPERS 
 USDA- United States Department of Agriculture 
 UWMP- Urban Water Management Plan 
 WUE- Urban Water Use Efficiency 





		Meeting Date: September 5, 2019  






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-I  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 5, 2019   
 
Subject:  CSDA Election Results    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   


 
Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
None 


 
DISCUSSION:   
 


At the August 1st Board meeting, there was some discussion about which 
candidate to vote for in the California Special District Association (CSDA) Bay 
Area Board (Seat B) member.  The Sweetwater Springs Water District Board 
agreed to vote for Cheryl Suddith of West County Wastewater District.  The 
incumbent, Ryan Clausnitzer, GM of Alameda County Mosquito Abatement 
District won the seat.   
 
 
 
   


 





		Meeting Date: September 5, 2019  






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-J  
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 5, 2019   
 
Subject:  Sonoma Water Conservation Agreement and CalWEP 
Membership    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   


 
Receive report from the General Manager.  Discussion and possible action. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
$4,000 annually. 


 
DISCUSSION:   
 


Sonoma Water (Sonoma County Water District) has partnered through contract 
with Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) since 2010 for water efficiency 
measures in the SSWD service area.  Sonoma Water benefitted by receiving 
grant money to administer the regional effort.  SSWD has benefitted by helping 
reduce per Capita water usage in our service area.  A letter from Brian Lee with 
Sonoma Water is an addendum to this memo.   
 
As part of this contract, Sonoma Water reimbursed SSWD for the ~$4,000 
annual dues for membership of SSWD in California Water Efficiency Partnership 
(CAlWEP, formerly California Urban Water Conservation Council).  In early 2020, 
SSWD will be solely responsible for payment of continued membership in 
CalWEP if we choose to remain members.  The General Manager is exploring the 
cost and benefit of CalWEP. 
 
 
 
   


 







August 20, 2019 


Ed Fortner 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 


PO Box 48 


Guerneville, CA 95446 


RE: Wrap Up Report on the First Amended Agreement for Funding of Sweetwater Springs 


Water District Water Conservation Program (TW 10/11-034A) 


Dear Mr. Fortner, 


This report provides a summary and wrap up of the First Amended Agreement for Funding of 


Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) Water Conservation Program between the Russian 


River County Sanitation District (District) and SSWD. The Agreement allocated District funds 


totaling $50,000 for a Five-Year Water Conservation Budget at $10,000 per year and 


reimbursement of SSWD membership dues to the California Urban Water Conservation Council 


(CUWCC), now the California Water Efficiency Partnership (CalWEP), for a period of ten years 


beginning 2010 in the amount of up to $4,000 per year. 


Membership Dues Reimbursement: 


Each year beginning with 2010 dues, SSWD has invoiced the District for reimbursement of dues 


paid to remain a member in good standing of the CUWCC/CalWEP. The ten year period 


concluded with SSWD invoicing for 2019 CalWEP dues on June 20, 2019. 


Water Conservation Budget: 


In Year 1, SSWD requested a reimbursement of $10,000 for SSWD run water conservation 


activities.  In Year 2, SSWD did not request any reimbursement. During Year 3, SSWD directed 


the District to utilize the Water Conservation Budget from Years 2 through 5 to integrate SSWD 


customers into District’s existing water conservation programs. 


The District utilized the $40,000 of the Five-Year Water Conservation Budget beginning June 


2012 through December of 2018 implementing these programs: 


High-Efficiency Fixture Direct Install Program (HEFDIP) 


The District installed 64 toilets in 39 homes through the High-Efficiency Fixture Direct Install 


Program (HEFDIP) – a full service installation program that provided free high-efficiency toilets 


(1.1 gallons per flush or less), showerheads (1.5 gallons per minute) and faucet aerators (1.5 


gallons per minute) installed by licensed plumbers at no cost to participants. 


Installations began in June 2012 and continued through April 2014. The total cost of HEFDIP for 


SSWD customers was $33,660. 


 


 







Russian River Drought Relief Program High-Efficiency Fixture Direct-Install Program 


(RRDRP) 


In response to the 2014-2017 drought, the District installed 58 toilet in 40 homes through the 


Russian River Drought Relief Program’s High-Efficiency Fixture Direct Install Program 


(RRDRP). The program was grant funded and provided an updated full service installation 


program with free high-efficiency toilets (0.8 gallons per flush), showerheads (1.5 gallons per 


minute) and faucet aerators (1.2 gallons per minute bath and 1.5 gallons per minute kitchen) 


installed by licensed plumbers at no cost to participants. 


Installations began in August 2015 and continued through November 2018. The total cost of 


RRDRP for SSWD customers was $22,147.45 of which the District received grant 


reimbursement of $15,129.03 through the California Department of Water Resources Proposition 


84 North Coast Integrated Regional Water Management Plan grant program. The grant funds 


were used to offset the cost accrued towards the Agreement’s Water Conservation Program 


Budget which came to $7,018.42. 


The below table summarizes Water Conservation Budget activities. 


 


After the expected grant reimbursement funds are received and applied towards water 


conservation activities, an over budget expenditure of $678.42 remains which the District will 


invoice to SSWD. 


Sincerely, 


 


Brian Lee 


Senior Programs Specialist 


Sonoma Water 


 





		Item V-J - Sonoma County Water Contract and CalWEP Membership

		Meeting Date: September 5, 2019  



		Item V-J.1 - CalWEP Membership Letter






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VII   
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 5, 2019   
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1.  Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets all known 
State and Federal water quality standards. Lead and Copper analyses were completed and 
submitted for Guerneville and Monte Rio systems and letters sent to all customers at the 
locations tested.     


 
2.  Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in July were 27,419 units (62.9 AF Guerneville 


cycle), and production was 75.8 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales and production were 
slightly higher (65.0 AF and 77.9 AF, respectively).  Figure 1 shows sales, production and 
% difference for the combined systems; the water loss trend was flat this month (17.3%).  
Looking at the data over the last ten years, water production has dropped approximately 
29%, and sales have dropped 18%.  Water loss percentage was around 30% and now is in 
the 15-20% range.  Much of the production and water loss drop can be attributed to the 
capital projects funded by Redevelopment.  The sales drop is probably due to the drought 
public education; it's unlikely historic use levels will return soon.    


 
3.  Leaks:  In August we had 7 total leak repairs with 57 hours on it.  Six leaks were in 


Guerneville and one in Monte Rio.  That is less leaks and fewer man-hours compared to 
the prior month and more leaks and hours compared to August one year ago (18 and 100).  
Figure 2 shows service and main leaks separately with a total leak line as well.  Looking at 
the leaks chart over the last ten years we've come down from around 300 leaks per month 
to just over 100 - quite a difference and very noticeable in what the field crews are able to 
do - address ongoing issues with in-house projects instead of chasing leaks every day.     


   
4.  Guerneville Rainfall:  June rainfall was 0” of rainfall this month is slightly lower than the 


long-term average and moves the yearly total slightly below the long-term annual average.        







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 6 
September 5, 2019 
 
  
5.   2019 CIP:  Piazza completed the installation of the ATEC filters.  ATEC representative 


came onsite on August 21st to do start up.  Misha Anderson with the Division of Drinking 
Water inspected the process on August 22nd and issued the verbal operating permit on 
August 28th.  Piazza will now proceed with demolition and full transition to the new ATEC 
system.   


 
6.   In-House Construction Projects: There was one in-house construction projects in 


August, a 1” service at 17811 Old Monte Rio Rd. (MR)  Thirteen hours were required to 
complete the project.  There were no toilet rebates.   


 
7.   Personnel:  Ryan Wilson attained his Distribution Level Three license.  Ryan is now a 


Maintenance Worker III, Step Four.  Kevin Gilman’s effective last day with SSWD is 
October 31st.  Jack Bushgen will succeed Kevin as Field Manager.  


 
8.   Discontinuation of Service for Non-payment Law:  Continue to work on 


implementation by 02/2020 deadline.   
 


9.   SSWD Website Update: Continue to investigate.   
 


10. Strategic Planning:  Goal update is on agenda. 
 


11. North Coast Regional Water Quality Control Board/ Sonoma County MRDL 
Regulation:  GM remotely attended NCRWQCB MRDL meeting on August 14th.  
Directors Robb-Wilder and Holmer attended meeting and Director Holmer gave testimony.  
Regulation has been approved. 


 
12. Joint Lower Russian River and Sonoma Coast MAC Meeting in Cazadero:  GM 


attended Joint MAC meeting on August 15th.  State Senator Mike McGuire spoke with 
updates on legislation and funding of projects.  County Supervisor Linda Hopkins spoke on 
County issues including road projects, fire safe issues, and funding options.  Mar Bramfitt 
of LAFCO spoke about fire district consolidation including Russian River with Sonoma 
County Fire. 


 
13. Flushing:  System Hydrant Flushing will begin in October in Guerneville and continue to 


Monte Rio, finishing in late November.  Advance notice will be mailed to all customers and 
the schedule posted to our website. 


 
14.  Cross-Connection Survey and Fall Flood Warning:  These two items will also be 


mailed out to customers in the September and October bill mailings, as required by the 
Division of Drinking Water.   







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 6 
September 5, 2019 
 


 
15.  Water Audit Validation:  The GM completed the 2018 Water Audit using free software 


from AWWA.  Validation of the results will be performed by Sonoma Water. 
 


16.  Gantt Chart: The Gantt Chart is updated for August, FY 2020.   
 


          
 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 4 of 6 
September 5, 2019 
 







 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 6 of 6 
September 5, 2019 
 


General Manager’s Report  Page 6 of 6 
September 5, 2019 
 


 





		Meeting Date: September 5, 2019  






   
    


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 


TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D 
 
FROM: Ed Fortner, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: September 5, 2019 
SUBJECT: AMENDED SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND RESOLUTION 19-11 
APPROVAL  


 
 


RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 Approve Board President to sign amended MOU with SDRMA for Health 


Benefits 
 Adopt Resolution 19-11, Approving the GM to sign the amended SDRMA 


MOU for Health Benefits enrollment (Vision and Dental). 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


Sweetwater Springs Water District began using SDRMA for our Vision and Dental 
Health Coverage in 2018.  For the open enrollment period in 2019, SDRMA has 
amended the enrollment MOU to comply with the Affordable Care Act, the CSAC-
EIA (coverage provider) pool guidelines, and IRS guidelines. 
Resolution 19-11 allows premium changes.  We presently pay $1,259 monthly 
and have received the latest rates. 


 
 





























		Item V-D - Approve Res 19-11 amended MOU approval

		Meeting Date: September 5, 2019



		Item V-D.1 - RES 19-11 re SDRMA Health Benefits Program MOU



